
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 2
Minutes

May 20, 2015 6
Payroll

Payroll/Overtime Report 9
Warrants

Accounts Payable 12
Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Sign Program
Supplement No. N019 for the California Avenue Sidewalk
Project

Staff Report - California Sidewalk PS 22
Healthy Workplace/Healthy Family Act of 2014 Part-Time Sick
Leave Provisions Effective July 1, 2015

Staff Report - Healthy Families Act of 2014 30
Resolution Designating City Manager as Authorized
Representative for the Safe Drinking Water State Revolving
Fund Grant for Well No. 18 and Consolidation of Double L
Mobile Ranch Park

Staff Report - SDWSRF Authorized Rep 34
Public Hearing on Proposed Utility Rates for Fiscal Year
2015/16

Staff Report - Utility Rates 40
Public Hearing Amending Title 17 of the Kerman Municipal
Code Related to Emergency Shelters, Transitional and
Supportive Housing for the Homeless

Staff Report - Emergency Shelters 48
Participation in the Sustainable Energy Roadmap (SER)
Program

Staff Report - SER Program 58
Resolution Approving Agreement for Utility Service at 432 S.
Goldenrod Avenue

Staff Report - Magana 63
Preliminary Budget Presentations of Landscape & Lighting
District and Internal Service Funds Budget

Staff Report -  LLMD/ISF Budgets 73
Kerman 36% Water Savings Campaign

Staff Report - Water Conservation 80

1



AGENDA 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, June 3, 2015 

6:30 PM  
 
 
 

AGENDA PACKET AVAILABLE FOR  
REVIEW 72 HOURS PRIOR TO  

THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING AT  
THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AND  

ON THE CITY WEBSITE 
ITEMS RECEIVED AT THE 

MEETING WILL BE AVAILABLE  
FOR REVIEW AT THE CITY  

CLERK’S OFFICE  

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

ALL MEETING ATTENDEES ARE ADVISED THAT ALL PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES AND ANY OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES SHOULD BE POWERED OFF UPON ENTERING THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 

AS THESE DEVICES INTERFERE WITH OUR AUDIO EQUIPMENT. 
 

OPENING CEREMONIES 
 

• Welcome – Mayor  
• Call to Order 
• Roll Call 
• Invocation 

At this time the Council wishes to provide anyone an opportunity to give a brief invocation or 
inspirational thought. In accordance with law, we would request this opportunity not be used to 
recruit converts, to advance anyone, or to disparage any other faith or belief. If no one steps 
forward, we will observe a moment of silence so that we may all focus our thoughts on how best 
to serve our community. 

 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  
 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS 
 

To accommodate members of the public or convenience in the order of presentation, items on 
the agenda may not be presented or acted upon in the order listed. 
 

COUNCIL RECESS TO CONVENE TO JOINT CITY COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION WORKSHOP 
 
Joint Workshop Agenda 
 
COUNCIL RECONVENE AS THE CITY COUNCIL 

 
1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 

 
A. Presentation from Kings Basin Water Authority on State Groundwater Sustainability Act (KM) 

 
B. Recognition of City Attorney Mark Blum for his years of service to the City of Kerman 

(reception to follow Council meeting) (SBH) 
 

2

http://cityofkerman.net/wp-content/uploads/2014/05/Agenda-Packet-2015-06-03-CC-PC-final.pdf


REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for members of the public to address the Council on items 
of interest that are not on the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Council. Speakers shall be limited to three minutes. It is requested that no comments be made 
during this period on items on the Agenda. Members of the public wishing to address the Council 
on items on the Agenda should notify the Mayor when that Agenda item is called, and the 
Mayor will recognize your discussion at that time. It should be noted that the Council is 
prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda. 
Speakers are asked to please use the microphone, and provide their name and address. 

 
2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one 
motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
a member of the audience or a Council Member may request an item be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and it will be considered separately. 

 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: May 20, 2015 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
 

Payroll Report: May 10, 2015 - May 23, 2015: $123,228.07; Overtime: $7,099.24; 
Standby: $1,183.15; Comp Time Earned: 63.00 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Payroll/Overtime Report 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants  
 

1. 6450-6529:  $199,162.53 
2. Excepting -  Sebastian 6483: $480.00 
 Valley Food 6492: $199.85 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers as 
presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Accounts Payable 
 

Consent Cale ndar  
 
 
 

D. SUBJECT: Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Sign Program Supplement No. 
N019 for the California Avenue Sidewalk Project (JJ) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt the resolution authorizing the City 
Manager to sign Program Supplement No. N019 for the California Avenue Sidewalk 
Project. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - California Sidewalk Project 

3



E. SUBJECT: Healthy Workplace/Healthy Family Act of 2014 Part-Time Sick Leave Provisions 
Effective July 1, 2015 (TJ) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving a sick leave policy 
pursuant to AB 1522 for part-time employees as required by the State of California. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Healthy Families Act of 2014 
 

F. SUBJECT: Resolution Designating City Manager as Authorized Representative for the 
Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Grant for Well No. 18 and Consolidation of 
Double L Mobile Ranch Park (JJ) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt the resolution designating the City 
Manager as the authorized representative for the Safe Drinking Water State Revolving 
Fund Grant for Well No. 18 and Consolidation of the Double L Mobile Ranch Park. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - SDWSRF Authorized Rep 
 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

These hearings are scheduled at the time stated and will be heard by the Council as close to 
the time stated as possible. 
 

A. SUBJECT: Public Hearing on Proposed Utility Rates for Fiscal Year 2015/16 (TJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council open the public hearing, receive public testimony, close 
the public hearing and by motion adopt resolution approving utility rates for Fiscal Year 
2015/16. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Utility Rates 
 

B. SUBJECT: Public Hearing Amending Title 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code Related to 
Emergency Shelters, Transitional and Supportive Housing for the Homeless (LP) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council waive further reading, conduct the public hearing and 
adopt Ordinance No. 15-01 amending Chapter 17.90.020 and adding Section 17.92 to 
Chapter 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code relating to emergency shelters, transitional 
and supportive housing for the homeless. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Emergency Shelters 
 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 

A. SUBJECT: Participation in the Sustainable Energy Roadmap (SER) Program (LP) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion approve participation in the Sustainable Energy 
Roadmap program and authorizes the City Manager to execute the Jurisdiction Partner 
Agreement on behalf of the City of Kerman. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - SER Program 

4



B. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Agreement for Utility Service at 432 S. Goldenrod 
Avenue (JJ) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving Agreement for 
Utility Service for Jesus and Lydia Magana at 432 S. Goldenrod Avenue. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Magana 
 

C. SUBJECT: Preliminary Budget Presentations of Landscape & Lighting District and Internal 
Service Funds Budget. (TJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council to review the preliminary Landscape & Lighting and 
Internal Service Funds Budgets for Fiscal Year 2015/16 and make any recommendations 
for changes 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report – LLMD/ISF Budgets  
 

D. SUBJECT: Kerman 36% Water Savings Campaign (KM) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council review Kerman 36% Water Savings Campaign and make 
any recommendations or changes as needed. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Water Conservation  
 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

A. Sebastian's Founders Day - Friday, June 19, 11:30 a.m. - 1:30 p.m., Veterans Park 
 

7. CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. Government Code Section 54957 Public Employee Evaluation - Title: City Manager 

 
COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN 

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to 
participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (559) 846-9380. Notification of 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the City Clerk to make reasonable arrangement to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to the physically handicapped. 

 

5



MINUTES 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, May 20, 2015 

6:30 PM  
 

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

 

Present: Mayor Hill (SH) Rhonda Armstrong (RA) Gary Yep (GY), Fox (NF), Nijjer (BN) 
Absent: None 
Also Present: City Manager/Planning & Development Director, City Attorney, 
Community Services Director, Finance Director, Public Works Director, City Engineer 

Voting: Yes, 
No, Absent 
(Abstain if 
needed) 

OPENING CEREMONIES  

• Welcome – Mayor   

• Call to Order 6:32 p.m. 

• Roll Call All present 

• Invocation SH 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  Performed 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS Approved 
NF/RA  
(5-0-0) 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS  

A. Presentation by the Fresno Co. Mosquito Vector and Vector Control Board (KM) Presented 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL Loretta & 
Joshua 
Willman 

2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes - May 6, 2015 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll April 26-May 9, 2015: $127,504.85; Retro Pay & Other: 
$1,209.20; OT: $3,911.62; Standby: $1,239.32; Comp Time Earned: 35.25 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants  
 

1. Nos.6356-6449: $249,346.68 
2. Excepting - Sebastian: 6390-$3,088.58 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers 
as presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208)nt Calendar 

 
Approved 
GY/BN 
excepting 
#6390 
(5-0-0) 
 

 

 

 

Approved 
#6390 
NF/GY  
(4-0-1) RA 
 

 

6



D. SUBJECT: Monthly Investment Report Ending April 30, 2015 (TJ)  

RECOMMENDATION: Council accept the Monthly Investment Report as 
presented. 

 

E. SUBJECT: Proclamation - Proclaiming May 17-23, 2015 as National Public Works 
Week (LP) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion proclaim May as National Public 
Works Week. 

 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS None 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS  

A. SUBJECT: Letter of Request from the State Water Resources Control Board for 
Possible Use of Public Water System as a Source of Potable Water for Water 
Haulers (KM) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council consider water system as a possible source of 
potable water for water haulers. 

Approved 
policy by 
MO PW 
Director 
monitor 
GY/RA 
(5-0-0) 
 

B. SUBJECT: Water Conservation Implementation Plan (KM) Presented 

RECOMMENDATION: Council receive Water Conservation Plan and provide 
direction to staff accordingly. 

 

C. SUBJECT: Letter from Fresno County Board of Supervisors Henry Perea, District 
3 Requesting Resolution for Support of Central Valley Drought (LP) 

Approved  
GY/RA  
(5-0-0) 

RECOMMENDATION: Council review request and by motion adopt resolution 
for Support of Central Valley Drought. 

 
 
 
Res 15-19 

D. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Agreement for Auditing Services for Fiscal 
Years 2014/15 Through 2018/2019 (TJ) 

Approved 
5-year 
contract 
GY/BN  
(5-0-0) 

RECOMMENDATION: Council review summary of proposals and by motion 
adopt resolution for auditing services and authorize the City Manager to sign 
the Engagement Letter. 

 
 
 
Res 15-20 

E. SUBJECT: Second Presentation of Preliminary General Fund Budget for Fiscal 
Year 2015/2016 (TJ) 

Presented 

RECOMMENDATION: Council to review the preliminary General Fund Budget 
for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 and make any recommendations for changes. 

 

7



F. SUBJECT: Presentation of Preliminary Enterprise Fund Budgets for Fiscal Year 
2015/2016 (TJ) 

Presented 

RECOMMENDATION: Council to review the preliminary Enterprise Fund 
Budgets for fiscal year 2015/2016 and make any recommendations for 
changes. 

 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS  

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS  

A. Letters Endorsed by the Mayor on behalf of the City - Latino Water Coalition to 
Governor Brown; Kerman United Health Center 

 

7. CLOSED SESSION  

A. Government Code Section 45957 Public Employee Evaluation - Title: City 
Manager 

Tabled to 
June 3 mtg. 

COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN  

8. ADJOURNMENT Adjourned 
9:20 p.m. 

 

 

MINUTES CERTIFICATION 

 
I,   MARCI REYES, City Clerk for the City of Kerman, do hereby declare under penalty of perjury 
that the above Minutes are a true depiction of all actions taken at the City Council meeting held 
on the first date above written at Kerman City Hall, 850 S. Madera Ave, Kerman, CA. 

         Date: May 21, 2015 
 
         ____________________ 
         Marci Reyes 
         City Clerk 
 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: JUNE 3, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Jerry Jones, City Engineer 
Subject: Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Sign Program Supplement No. N019 for the California 

Avenue Sidewalk Project 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt the resolution authorizing the City Manager to sign Program Supplement No. N019 for the 
California Avenue Sidewalk Project. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
The City has been allocated Federal Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program (CMAQ) funds for 
the construction of a 10 foot wide sidewalk on the south side of California Avenue from Del Norte Avenue to First 
Street. Caltrans requires a Program Supplement to the Master Agreement for each new project. This resolution will 
authorize the City Manager to sign the Program Supplement for this project. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The City receives a bi-annual allocation of CMAQ Lifeline funds to be used for projects that improve air quality. The 
City has applied its FY 14/15-15/16 allocation to the construction of a 10 foot wide sidewalk along the south side of 
California Avenue from Del Norte Avenue to First Street. The sidewalk will be a joint-use pedestrian and bicyclist 
route. The project is a portion of the California Avenue Pedestrian Route Master Plan. The preliminary engineering 
phase is planned to begin this summer, with construction planned for Spring/Summer 2016. 
 
The City of Kerman has received Federal funding for various transportation projects over the years and has entered 
into a Master Agreement for the administration of those funds. Each individual project requires the approval of a 
separate Program Supplement. This Program Supplement to the Master Agreement is a standard form and is 
required before the City may receive the funding. The City is not allowed to make any changes to the Program 
Supplement. The Program Supplement requires the City to follow all of the Federal requirements for the project. 
 

  

22



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 8 
CMAQ Funds – California Sidewalk 
  

 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The City cannot receive any of the Federal CMAQ funding programmed for the project without executing the 
Program Supplement. The CMAQ funds programmed for the project are $118,700. The City will be required to 
contribute $61,300 in Local Transportation funds, for a total project cost of $180,000. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Not Required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution w/ Exhibit 
B. Vicinity Map 

 
 
  

23



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 8 
CMAQ Funds – California Sidewalk 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN, CALIFORNIA, 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT NO. N019  

FOR THE CALIFORNIA AVENUE SIDEWALK PROJECT 
 

RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kerman, County of Fresno, California, that: 
WHEREAS, the City of Kerman is eligible to receive Federal and/or State funding for certain transportation projects, 

through the California Department of Transportation; and 
WHEREAS, Program Supplemental Agreements, Fund Exchange Agreements and/or Fund Transfer Agreements need 

to be executed with the California Department of Transportation for the California Avenue Sidewalk Project before such funds 
could be claimed; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Kerman wishes to delegate authorization to execute these agreements and any amendments 
thereto. 
NOW, THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, AND ORDERED as follows: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute Program Supplement No. N019 attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A’ and 
all Program Supplemental Agreements, Fund Exchange Agreements, Fund Transfer Agreements and/or any 
amendments thereto for the California Avenue Sidewalk Project, Federal Project No. CML-5291(024) with the 
California Department of Transportation. 

2. This authorization shall be effective immediately and remain in effect until modified by council resolution. 
The forgoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 
3rd day of June, 2015, by the following vote to wit: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 

The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 
 
                                                                                  
       Stephen B. Hill  

Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
                                                                  
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 
 
 

24



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 8 
CMAQ Funds – California Sidewalk 
  

Exhibit ‘A’ 

 

25



City Council Staff Report    Page 5 of 8 
CMAQ Funds – California Sidewalk 
  

26



City Council Staff Report    Page 6 of 8 
CMAQ Funds – California Sidewalk 
  

27



City Council Staff Report    Page 7 of 8 
CMAQ Funds – California Sidewalk 
  

 

28



City Council Staff Report    Page 8 of 8 
CMAQ Funds – California Sidewalk 
  

Attachment ‘B’ 

 

29



   
 

 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

 MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
 Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
 COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
 Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: FINANCE 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: JUNE 3, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Toni Jones, Finance Director 
Subject: Healthy Workplace/Healthy Family Act of 2014 Part-Time Sick Leave Provisions Effective July 1, 2015 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Council by motion adopt resolution approving a sick leave policy pursuant to AB 1522 for part-time employees as 
required by the State of California. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
The State of California has enacted the Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act of 2014 (AB 1522). Beginning 
July 1, 2015 employers must provide paid sick leave for employees covered under AB 1522. Under the provisions of 
AB 1522, the City may establish the accrual method and the minimum usage increment for paid sick leave. Under 
the proposed method of implementing this benefit, part-time employees will accrue paid sick leave at the rate of one 
(1) hour of paid sick leave for every thirty (30) hours worked beginning on the first day of employment. If an 
employee separates from employment and is re-hired within one year of the date of separation, previously accrued 
and unused paid sick leave hours shall be reinstated.  
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES 
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
On September 10, 2014, Governor Brown signed into law the Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act of 2014 that 
provides up to three (3) days or twenty-four (24) hours of paid sick leave for eligible employees beginning July 1, 
2015. AB 1522 allows the City to choose between two methods, accrual or frontloading/lump sum method; staff is 
recommending the accrual method. 
 
City part-time employees are not covered by any Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) agreements. As such, 
these employees are subject to the provisions of AB 1522. All other employees of the City are covered under MOU’s 
that meet or exceed the minimum requirements for AB 1522 paid sick leave and are, therefore, not subject to AB 
1522. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
None. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A.  Resolution w/Exhibit  

30



City Council Staff Report                             Page 2 of 4 
Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act of 2014 (AB 1522) 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
ADOPTING A PAID SICK LEAVE POLICY PURSUANT TO AB 1522 FOR PART-TIME EMPLOYEES 
ESTABLISHING THE ACCRUAL METHOD AND MINIMUM PAID SICK LEAVE USAGE INCREMENT 

 
 WHEREAS, on September 10, 2014 the Governor of the State of California signed the Healthy Workplaces, Healthy 
Families Act of 2014 (AB 1522) providing paid sick leave for covered employees; and 

 WHEREAS, the AB 1522 paid sick leave provision are to take effect July 1, 2015; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Kerman wishes to establish a paid sick leave policy pursuant to AB 1522 for part-time employees; 
and 

WHEREAS, part-time employees are not covered by an existing Memorandum of Understanding agreement, nor any 
other benefits policy; and 

WHEREAS, a Part-time employee Paid Sick Leave Policy is attached as Exhibit ‘A’; and 

WHEREAS, AB 1522 allows the City to establish the accrual method and the minimum usage increment for paid sick 
leave, 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Kerman as follows: 
1. Paid sick leave shall be accrued at the rate of one (1) hour of paid sick leave for every thirty (30) hours worked. 

Accrued and unused paid sick leave shall carry to the following year of employment with a cap of forty-eight (48) 
hours or six (6) days whichever is greater. Sick leave does not accrue once the cap is reached, but accrual begins 
again when accrued sick leave drops below the cap. Any unused accrued paid sick leave carries over year to year 
while continuously employed. 

2. An employee shall be entitled to use accrued paid sick time beginning on the 90th day of employment with the City. 
3. Paid sick leave shall be taken in increments of not less than two (2) hours. 
4. Paid sick leave benefits shall be effective July 1, 2015 and shall remain in effect until modified, terminated, or 

rescinded by subsequent resolution of the City Council, or by changes to applicable State or Federal law. 
The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 3rd 

day of June, 2015, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 
 
 AYES:  
 NOES:  
        ABSENT:  
      ABSTAIN:  
 
 The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
              
         Stephen B. Hill 
ATTEST:        Mayor 
 
       
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk  

31



City Council Staff Report                             Page 3 of 4 
Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act of 2014 (AB 1522) 
  

Exhibit ‘A’ 
 

City of Kerman 
Part-time Employee Paid Sick Leave Policy 

 
The Governor of the State of California signed the Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act of 2014 (AB 1522) 
providing paid sick leave for part-time, temporary, and seasonal employees effective July 1, 2015 under the following 
conditions: 
 
Accrual Method 

• An employee begins to accrue paid sick leave at the rate of one (1) hour of paid sick leave for every thirty 
(30) hours worked beginning on the first day of employment or July 1, 2015 for current part time employees.  
An employee is not eligible to begin using accrued paid sick leave until after 90 days of employment with the 
City. 

 
• In accordance with California’s Paid Sick Leave law, an employee may use up to a maximum of three (3) 

days or twenty-four (24) hours of accrued paid sick leave in a 12-month period for one of the following 
reasons:     

 
§ For the employee’s own diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health condition or preventative care. 

 
§ For the diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health condition or preventative care for an 

employee’s family member, including: 
 

§ Child (including a biological, adopted, or foster child, stepchild, legal ward, or a child to whom the 
employee stands in loco parentis.)   

 
§ Spouse or Registered Domestic Partner 

 
§ Parent (including biological, adoptive, or foster parent, stepparent, or legal guardian of an employee 

or the employee’s spouse or registered domestic partner, or a person who stood in loco parentis 
when the employee was a minor child.) 

 
§ Grandparent 

 
§ Grandchild 

 
§ Sibling 

 
• To obtain any relief or services related to being a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking 

including the following with appropriate certification of the need for such services: 
 

§ A temporary restraining order or restraining order. 
 

§ Other injunctive relief to help ensure the health, safety or welfare of themselves or their children. 
 

§ To seek medical attention for injuries caused by domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking. 

32



City Council Staff Report                             Page 4 of 4 
Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act of 2014 (AB 1522) 
  

 
§ To obtain services from a domestic violence shelter, program, or rape crisis center as a result of 

domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking. 
 

§ To obtain psychological counseling related to an experience of domestic violence, sexual assault, or 
stalking. 

 
§ To participate in safety planning and take other actions to increase safety from future domestic 

violence, sexual assault, or stalking, including temporary or permanent relocation. 
 

• An employee can accrue paid sick leave up to a cap of 6 days or 48 hours ongoing. Sick leave does not 
accrue once the cap is reached, but accrual begins again when accrued sick leave drops below the cap. Any 
unused accrued paid sick leave will carryover year to year while continuously employed up to the cap stated 
above. 

 
• An employee shall provide reasonable advance notification of their need to use accrued paid sick leave to 

their supervisor if the need for paid sick leave use is foreseeable (e.g., doctor’s appointment scheduled in 
advance).  If the need for paid sick leave use is unforeseeable, the employee shall provide notice of the need 
for the leave to their supervisor as soon as is practicable.   

 
• An employee who uses paid sick leave must do so with a minimum increment of two hours of sick leave. 

 
• Paid sick leave will not be considered hours worked for purposes of overtime calculation.  An employee will 

not receive compensation for unused accrued paid sick leave upon termination, resignation, retirement or 
other separation from employment with the City. 

 
• If an employee separates from City employment and is re-hired by the City within one year of the date of 

separation, previously accrued and unused paid sick leave hours shall be reinstated to the extent required by 
law.  However, if a rehired employee had not yet worked the requisite 90 days of employment to use paid 
sick leave at the time of separation, the employee must still satisfy the 90 days of employment requirement 
collectively over the periods of employment with the City before any paid sick leave can be used. 

 
 
 

 
 

33



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING AND DEVLOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: JUNE 3, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Jerry Jones, City Engineer 
Subject: Resolution Designating City Manager as Authorized Representative for the Safe Drinking Water State 

Revolving Fund Grant for Well No. 18 and Consolidation of Double L Mobile Ranch Park 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt the resolution designating the City Manager as the authorized representative for the Safe 
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Grant for Well No. 18 and Consolidation of the Double L Mobile Ranch Park. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
In 2013, the City was approached by the California Department of Public Health (CDPH), Drinking Water Program, 
regarding the connection of the Double L Mobile Ranch Park (MRP) to the City’s water system to address ongoing 
violations by the Double L MRP water system.  In doing so, the City would be eligible for funding through the Safe 
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (SDWSRF) Program for the construction of the necessary facilities to connect 
the Double L MRP to the City’s water system and also for the construction of the City’s new Well No. 18.  The City 
was invited to apply for SDWSRF funding by CDPH on behalf of the Double L MRP. The City submitted the 
application to CDPH and has received the necessary environmental, technical, and financial clearances. Once funds 
become available, the City may enter into a funding agreement with the State for the project. During the last year, 
CDPH’s Drinking Water Program was transferred over to the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) and is 
now known as the Division of Drinking Water (DDW). A resolution similar to the one attached was adopted in 
November 2013, but at that time the SDWSRF Program was supervised by CDPH. The SWRCB is requiring a 
revised resolution. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The Double L MRP is a rural mobile home park located at the northeast corner of Floyd Avenue and Church 
Avenue, approximately 2.5 miles east of the City, see Attachment B. The Double L MRP is served by a small private 
water system. The water system has ongoing uranium maximum contaminant level (MCL) violations in the sole 
source of supply for the water system. As a privately owned water system, the water system is ineligible for funding 
through the SDWSRF Program. 

 
The City was approached by CDPH regarding the connection of the Double L MRP water system to the City’s water 
system.  As a public entity, the City is eligible to receive funding through the SDWSRF Program. The owner of the 

34



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 6 
SDWSRF Application 
  
Double L MRP, Mr. Carl Hunt, assigned his water system’s SDWSRF Construction Grant Application to the City. 
Therefore, the City was eligible to apply for funding for connection of the Double L MRP water system to the City’s 
water system. The connection would require the installation of a water main in California Avenue from Goldenrod 
Avenue to Floyd Avenue and in Floyd Avenue from California Avenue to Church Avenue, see Attachment B.  All 
costs associated with the installation of the water main and associated facilities would be eligible for funding, with no 
costs being borne by the City. 

 
At the time the City was approached by CDPH, preliminary design had begun on the City’s new domestic supply 
well, Well No. 18. The City had been in the process of developing Well No. 18 for several years in order to eliminate 
the periodic use of Well No. 10, which has had uranium levels above acceptable levels at times. The City relayed to 
CDPH that in order to provide water service to Double L MRP, the City needed to have Well No. 18 online. CDPH 
agreed that in addition to receiving funding for the connection of the Double L MRP, the City would be eligible to 
receive funding for the construction of the City’s new Well No. 18. Well No. 18 will be located approximately 400 feet 
north of Whitesbridge Road and 1,200 feet west of Madera Avenue, adjacent to the City’s storm drainage basin, see 
Attachment C. 
 
The City submitted an application for SDWSRF Grant funding to CDPH on December 26, 2013. The application was 
deemed complete on May 22, 2014. The City has received the necessary environmental, technical, and financial 
clearances. Once funds become available, the City may enter into a funding agreement with the State for the 
project. However, during the last year CDPH’s Drinking Water Program was transferred over to the State Water 
Resources Control Board (SWRCB) and is now known as the Division of Drinking Water (DDW). A resolution similar 
to the one attached was adopted in November 2013, but at that time the SDWSRF Program was supervised by 
CDPH. The SWRCB is requiring a revised resolution, as they use different templates and language for their 
resolutions. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The City must develop Well No. 18 regardless of whether or not the Double L MRP is connected to the City’s water 
system. The estimated cost for the development of Well No. 18 and the installation of all associated facilities is 
$1,500,000. If the project receives funding, the entire cost of Well No. 18 would be eligible for funding, along with the 
entire costs associated with the connection of the Double L MRP water system. The City has been assured by the 
State that this project is a priority and funding will be allocated to the project. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Not Required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution 
B. Vicinity Map – Double L MRP 
C. Vicinity Map – Well No. 18 

 
 
  

35



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 6 
SDWSRF Application 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
DESIGNATING THE CITY MANAGER AS THE AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

FOR THE SAFE DRINKING WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND GRANT 
FOR WELL NO. 18 AND CONSOLIDATION OF THE DOUBLE L MOBILE RANCH PARK 

 
WHEREAS, Carl Hunt is the owner of the Double L Mobile Ranch Park located at 11470 W. Church Avenue, in the 

County of Fresno; and 
WHEREAS, the Double L Mobile Ranch Park consists of thirty six (36) mobile home units/spaces and one residence 

and is served by a private water system owned and operated by Carl Hunt; and 
WHEREAS, the private water system has received violations from the California Department of Public Health Drinking 

Water Division (CDPH) for exceeding the uranium maximum contaminant level; and  
WHEREAS, the CDPH has approached the City of Kerman (City) regarding the consolidation of the Double L Mobile 

Ranch Park water system into the City’s water system and Carl Hunt is agreeable to this consolidation; and  
WHEREAS, the City deemed it necessary to construct Well No. 18 prior to providing water service to the Double L 

MRP; and  
WHEREAS, the CDPH invited the City to apply for Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Grant funding for 

construction of Well No. 18 and Consolidation of the Double L Mobile Ranch Park Water System ; and  
WHEREAS, the City has submitted an Application for Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Grant funding for 

construction of Well No. 18 and Consolidation of the Double L Mobile Ranch Park Water System. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The City Manager or designee is hereby authorized and directed to sign and file, for and on behalf of the City, a 
Financial Assistance Application for a financing agreement from the State Water Resources Control Board for the 
planning, design, and construction of Well No. 18 and Consolidation of the Double L Mobile Ranch Park. 
 

2. The City Manager, or his/her designee, is designated to provide the assurances, certifications, and commitments 
required for the financial assistance application, including executing a financial assistance agreement from the 
State Water Resources Control Board and any amendments or changes thereto.  

 
3. The City Manager, or his/her designee, is designated to represent the City in carrying out the City’s responsibilities 

under the financing agreement, including certifying disbursement requests on behalf of the City and compliance 
with applicable state and federal laws. 

 

36



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 6 
SDWSRF Application 
  
The forgoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 
3rd day of June, 2015, by the following vote to wit: 
 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 

The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 
              
        Stephen B. Hill  

 Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 
  

37



City Council Staff Report    Page 5 of 6 
SDWSRF Application 
  

Attachment ‘B’ 
 

 
 
 

38



City Council Staff Report    Page 6 of 6 
SDWSRF Application 
  

Attachment ‘C’ 
 

 

39



    
                                                      City of Kerman 

“Community Comes First” 
  

   

 

 MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
 Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
 COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
 Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: FINANCE DEPARTMENT
STAFF REPORT

CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MEETING DATE: JUNE 3, 2015

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Toni Jones, Finance Director 
Subject: Public Hearing for Proposed Utility Rates for Fiscal Year 2015/16  

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Council open the public hearing, receive public testimony, close the public hearing and by motion adopt resolution 
approving utility rates for Fiscal Year 2015/16. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
Each year staff reviews the revenue and expenditure projections for the Enterprise Funds (Water, Sewer, Solid 
Waste, Street Sweeping and Storm Drain) in order to determine if utility rates need adjustments to cover projected 
expenditures. The Enterprise Funds are different than the General Fund because the cost of operations is paid for 
by user charges. The City of Kerman owns and operates its own utilities with the exception of street sweeping, 
refuse hauling and collection (Solid Waste), which are contracted with outside firms. 
 
After a thorough review of current and future revenue requirements and reserve levels for the Enterprise Funds, staff 
proposed the following rate increases for fiscal year 2015/16: 

 
• Water      .50 per user/month 
• Sewer    .75 per user/month 
• Solid Waste   .17 per user/month 
• Street Sweeping  .05 per user/month 
• Storm Drain   .05 per user/month 
Total            $1.52 per user/month 
 

Additionally staff proposed a increase to the cost per 1,000 gallons, from 0.7956 to 0.81; an increase of 0.0144 
cents. 
 
The proposed utility rate adjustments are minor in order to keep up with ongoing operational costs. The proposed 
water rate increase of .50 will be split; .25 set aside for meter replacements and .25 to cover ongoing operational 
expenses. The proposed sewer rate increases is necessary to cover operational expenses and debt service 
payments for the new Wastewater Treatment Plant. Operational expenses on the WWTP for maintenance, supplies 
and state fees continue to increase each year. In fiscal year 2014/15 the full debt service payment was expensed 
from the Sewer Operation budget. Previously debt service payments were split 50/50 with Sewer Development 
Impact Fee (DIF) funds, but due to the continuing decline in construction, funds to cover 50% of the debt servce are 

40



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 8 
Proposed Utility Rates for FY 2015/16 
 
not available in the DIF fund. In fiscal year 2015/16 $75,000 of the debt service payment will be paid with Sewer 
Development Impact Fees. 

 
Other minor adjustments are recommended to cover additional operating expenses within the funds including a 
small increase to cover increased tipping fees and inflation based on the CIP as stipulated in the contract with Mid 
Valley Disposal. Overall, the proposed rate changes represent a 1.96% on non-metered accounts and 2.33% on 
metered accounts or an average of $1.64 additional per month for utility customers. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES 
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The Proposed Utility Rates Summary (Attachment ‘A’), Proposed Enterprise Funds Revenue summary (Attachment 
‘B’), and Enterprise Funds Revenue and Expenditure Summary (Attachment ‘C’), are included with this report. Staff 
prepares these preliminary expenditure and revenue projections in order to determine the rate adjustments to be 
included in the fiscal year 2015/16 budget. Staff contacted other Fresno County municipalities to compare their 
current utility rates and is including the survey as Attachment ‘D’. The City of Kerman continues to have one of the 
lowest utility rates compared to other Fresno County agencies. 
 
The proposed rate adjustment would result in a total increase of $1.52 or 1.96% (from $77.40 per month to $78.92) 
for non-metered customers and $1.75 or 2.33% (from $75.02 per month to $76.77) for metered customers that use 
16,000 gallons of water per month (rates vary with water usage). Incremental adjustments to the utility rates each 
year are recommended in order to keep up with increases in operational costs and to avoid large rate adjustments in 
any given year. Staff is continuing to work on the fiscal year 2015/16 budget and the numbers will be revised as 
needed prior to the adoption of the final budget on June 17th. 
 
This public hearing is the next step in the process for the Council to authorize the proposed utility rate increases 
pursuant to Prop 218. Notices regarding the public hearing on the proposed rate changes were mailed to all property 
owners and utility customers on April 2nd; inserted in the April & May utility bills and posted on the City’s website. In 
addition, notices were published on April 22nd and May 6th in the Kerman News. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Open the Public Hearing to receive public testimony on the proposed Utility Rates for Fiscal Year 2015/16. To date, 
no letters of opposition have been received. 
 
Attachments: 

 
 A. Proposed Utility Rates 
 B. Enterprise Funds Revenue Summary 
 C. Enterprise Funds Revenue and Expenditure Summary 
 D. Utility Rate Survey 
 E. Resolution w/Exhibit 

41



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 8 
Proposed Utility Rates for FY 2015/16 
 

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

       WATER RATES 
Current 

Rate
Proposed 
Increase

Residential (Non-metered)       29.03 0.50 + 29.53     
Multi-Family (Non-Metered) per unit       23.48 0.50 + 23.98     
Commercial (Non-Metered)       29.03 0.50 + 29.53     
Residential & Multi-Family (3/4" Meter)       13.92 0.50 +
Residential & Multi-Family (1" Meter)       21.54 0.50 +
Commercial (Metered-Rate Determined by Meter Size)

  3/4" Meter 13.92      0.50 +
   1" Meter 21.54      0.50 +

   1.5" Meter 40.55      0.50 +
   2" Meter 93.82      0.50 +
   3" Meter 173.74   0.50 +
   4" Meter 287.90   0.50 +
   6" Meter 573.29   0.50 +

Water Cost per 1,000 Gallons 0.7956$ 0.0144

     16,000 gallons of usage + = $27.38
     24,000 gallons of usage + = $33.86

                                                                                    
Proposed 
Increase

Residential (Metered/Non-metered) 30.11 0.75 + =       30.86 
Multi-Family Residential (Metered/Non-Metered) per unit 18.39 0.75 + =       19.14 
Commercial (Non-Metered) 30.11 0.75 + =       30.86 
Commercial (Metered) 7.70 0.75 +
   Low Strength
   Medium Strength
   High Strength 

                                                                                    
     SOLID WASTE

Residential Customers
Commercial Customers

     STREET SWEEPING

Residential         0.95 
Multi-Family Residential per unit         0.52 

     STORM DRAIN

Residential (Metered/Non-metered)          1.50 
Commercial (Non-Metered)          1.50 

     RECAP
Current 

Rate
Non-Metered Customers          77.40          1.52 1.96%

         75.02          1.75 2.33%

                 1.55 

Effective July 1, 2015

       WATER USE EXAMPLES

1.05% increase

SEWER RATES                                                              Current Rate (Base + Flow)

16.03              0.17           

See 
Ex amples 

Below

See 
Ex amples 

Below

29.53                   $0.00
23.98                   $0.00
29.53                   $0.00
14.42                   

PROPOSED UTILITY RATE CHANGES - FISCAL YEAR 2015-16

Proposed Total 
Base Cost

Flow Cost Total Cost

Usage
22.04                   Usage

14.42                   Usage
22.04                   Usage
41.05                   Usage

Total Cost

94.32                   Usage
174.24                 Usage
288.40                 Usage
573.79                 Usage

$0.81

Base Cost Flow Cost
14.42                   $12.96
14.42                   $19.44

Base Cost Flow Cost Total Cost

                      8.45           22.41 

$1.10*
$1.43*
$2.74*

*Cost per 1,000 Gallons of Water Usage

                      1.94           17.20 
                      8.45           22.41 
                      8.45 Usage

            0.05 

Current Rate
Proposed 
Increase

Total Cost

15.86                   

Current Rate Proposed 
Increase

Total Cost

                      0.90 
                      0.47 

Current Rate Proposed 
Increase

Total Cost

            0.05 
            0.05 

            0.05                  1.55 

Proposed 
Increase

Total Cost

Commercial (Metered) - Based on Flow @ .0736 per 1,000 Gallons of Water Usage

Metered Customers Estimated @ 16,000 gallons of usage with 3/4" meter

% Increase

          78.92 
          76.77 

42



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 8 
Proposed Utility Rates for FY 2015/16 
 

 
Attachment ‘B’ 

 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

WATER FUND (410)
410 0000 344 10 00 User Charges 1,531,152 1,587,999 1,560,500 1,500,000 1,525,500
410 0000 344 15 00 Meters 1,950 10,025 4,000 4,500 4,000
410 0000 361 01 00 Interest Earnings 16,038 16,135 10,000 12,000 12,000
410 0000 361 10 00 Penalties 31,240 31,118 23,000 30,000 30,000
410 0000 369 01 00 Miscellaneous 780 359 0 0

1,581,159 1,645,636 1,597,500 1,546,500 1,571,500

SEWER FUND (420)
420 0000 344 20 00 User Charges 1,232,774 1,351,121 1,367,000 1,438,000 1,457,800
420 0000 344 25 00 Septic Dumping Fee 12,005 23,513 25,000 15,000 15,000
420 0000 344 50 00 Del Norte Sewer Trunk 802 544 500 550 500
420 0000 361 01 00 Interest Earnings 7,914 7,514 5,000 5,000 5,000
420 0000 361 02 00 Property Rental 19,745 25,028 25,000 31,336 30,000
420 0000 361 10 00 Penalties 25,144 26,451 18,000 25,000 25,000
420 0000 362 07 00 Sale of Dirt 0 0 0 5,000 0

1,298,383 1,434,170 1,440,500 1,519,886 1,533,300

SOLID WASTE FUND (430)
430 0000 344 31 00 Solid Waste Collection 993,543 1,021,767 1,025,880 1,050,000 1,056,732
430 0000 344 32 00 Grant 5,000 5,000 0 0 0
430 0000 344 33 00 Waste Bin Charges 559 486 600 1,750 1,500
430 0000 345 00 00 Street Sweeping 41,064 37,563 42,100 45,000 46,980
430 0000 361 01 00 Interest Earnings 3,216 3,343 2,000 2,900 3,000
430 0000 361 10 00 Penalties 19,811 20,251 17,000 20,000 20,000

1,063,192 1,088,410 1,087,580 1,119,650 1,128,212

STORM DRAINAGE FUND (470)
470 0000 344 70 00 User Charges 65,373 66,691 69,200 70,000 71,980
470 0000 361 01 00 Interest Earnings 224 237 200 200 200
470 0000 361 10 00 Penalties 0 0 0 1,000 1,000
470 0000 362 07 00 Sale of Dirt 16,500 265 0 0 0

82,097 67,192 69,400 71,200 73,180

Enterprise Funds' Revenue Summary
410, 420, 430, & 470

Description

 

43



City Council Staff Report    Page 5 of 8 
Proposed Utility Rates for FY 2015/16 
 
 

Attachment ‘C’ 
 

2014/15
 Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget

Activity Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

WATER FUND (410)
Total Water Fund Revenues 1,581,159 1,645,636 1,597,500 1,546,500 1,571,500

5005 Water Administration & Accounting 407,769      394,499             404,721             397,807             442,050             
5006 Water - Debt Service 165,000      165,000             165,000             165,000             165,000             
4041 Water Operations 810,645      859,445             924,640             896,035             900,888             

Total Water Fund Operations 1,383,414   1,418,943          1,494,361          1,458,841          1,507,938          

Revenue in Excess of Expenditures 197,745      226,693             103,139             87,659               63,562               

SEWER FUND (420)
Total Sewer Fund Revenues 1,298,383 1,434,170 1,440,500 1,519,886 1,533,300

5005 Sewer Administration & Accounting 334,641      351,511             323,547             320,234             350,632             
5006 Sewer - Debt Service 199,295      202,286             347,907             343,407             265,908             
4042 Sewer Operations 815,192      672,380             761,584             802,063             799,528             

Total Sewer Fund Operations 1,349,128   1,226,177          1,433,038          1,465,704          1,416,068          

Revenue in Excess of Expenditures (50,745)       207,994             7,462                 54,182               117,232             

SOLID WASTE (430)
Total Solid Waste Fund Revenues 1,063,192 1,088,410 1,087,580 1,119,650 1,128,212

5005 Solid Waste Administration & Accounting 974,144      1,042,768          1,083,124          1,097,708          1,083,469          
Total Solid Waste Fund Operations 974,144      1,042,768          1,083,124          1,097,708          1,083,469          

Revenue & Transfer in Excess of Expenditures 89,049        45,642               4,456                 21,942               44,743               
 
STORM DRAIN OPERATIONS FUND (470)
Total Storm Drain Operation Revenues 82,097 67,192 69,400 71,200 73,180

4047 Storm Drain Maintenance & Operations 63,330        65,959               72,565               71,125               71,458               
Total Storm Drain Fund Operations 63,330        65,959               72,565               71,125               71,458               

Revenue in Excess of Expenditures 18,767        1,234                 (3,165)                75                      1,722                 

TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUND REVENUE 4,024,832   4,235,408          4,194,980          4,257,236          4,306,192          

TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUND EXPENDITURES 3,770,015   3,753,847          4,083,088          4,093,379          4,078,932          
EXCESS (DEFICIT) REVENUE 254,817$    481,561$           111,892$           163,857$           227,260$           

SUMMARY OF ENTERPRISE FUND OPERATIONAL BUDGETS

 

44



City Council Staff Report    Page 6 of 8 
Proposed Utility Rates for FY 2015/16 
 
 

Attachment ‘D’ 

Connect Shut Off Solid Street Total
Agency Population Deposit Fee Fee Base Usage Flat Waste Sweep Drain Cost

Kerman
     Current
Kerman 
     

Fowler 5,570            100.00  -          40.00     16.24 9.72    24.78 24.34 -      -         75.08    

Mendota 11,500         150.00  10.00     10.00     -      32.40 31.00 15.44 -      -         78.84    

Orange Cove 9,179            162.24  -          10.00     36.50 -      24.20 20.42 -      -         81.12    

Fresno 494,665       160.00  -          15.00     10.03 12.96 25.75 32.98 6.23    -         87.95    

Kingsburg 11,382         -        -          25.00     27.00 4.00    26.28 30.10 2.10    -         89.48    

San Joaquin 4,600            288.18  -          10.00     44.93 -      37.68 13.45 -      -         96.06    

Parlier 14,000         154.41  -          40.00     18.50 32.09 27.50 21.86 -      -         99.95    

Sanger 24,270         200.00  -          50.00     24.27 11.36 38.88 27.57 1.43    -         103.51 

Huron 7,000            100.00  -          35.00     21.39 36.16 26.00 23.45 -      -         107.00 

Firebaugh 8,000            80.00    -          37.40     24.50 9.64    49.95 23.77 1.00    -         108.86 

Tranquility 799               -        -          -          45.00 -      25.00 43.24 -      -         113.24 

Selma 23,219         -        -          -          28.73 29.68 26.28 26.80 2.20    -         113.69 

Clovis 95,631         100.00  10.00     50.00     16.80 10.26 27.39 63.46 4.50    -         122.41 

Reedley 24,194         320.00  30.00     100.00   26.09 13.71 49.35 43.86 -      -         133.01 

*Comparison on Metered Rates based on 16,000 gallons of usage

Fresno County Agencies 

15.00     150.00  

150.00  

14,339         

-                

Municipality Utility Rate Survey 

April 2015

30.11 12.73 

76.77    1.55       0.95    16.03 30.86 12.96 

Water Sewer Storm

13.92 75.02    1.50       0.90    15.86 

14.42 

45



City Council Staff Report    Page 7 of 8 
Proposed Utility Rates for FY 2015/16 
 

 
Attachment ‘E’ 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 

ESTABLISHING UTILITY RATES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 
 
    WHEREAS, City staff and the City Council have analyzed the revenue and expenditure requirements for all of the City 
Enterprise Funds and determined the appropriate rate changes needed to meet these requirements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, utility rates for Fiscal Year 2015/16 are proposed as listed in Utility Rate schedule attached as Exhibit ‘A’; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, notices of the proposed utility increases were sent as a separate mailing to all of the Kerman utility 
customers and property owners on April 2, 2015, utility users were notified via inserts in the April and May 2015 monthly utility 
billings and notice was published in the Kerman News on April 22, 2015 and May 6, 2015. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Kerman that the Council does find, 
determine, resolve, and order as follows:   
           

1. Notice of public hearing on the proposed revision of rates has been published in two separate issues of a local 
newspaper, in a separate mailing to all Kerman utility customers and property owners and in two monthly utility billings, 
with the first newspaper publication and the separate mailing occurring at least 45 days prior to the public hearing; and 
 

2. The public hearing was held pursuant to law; and 
 

3. On the basis of information provided to the City Council at the hearing and in prior reports to the Council, the proposed 
rates as set forth are found to be not discriminatory or excessive, and do not exceed the reasonable cost of providing 
the services and facilities for which the rates are charged; and 
 

4. Rates and charges adopted herein were not calculated on the basis of any parcel map including the assessor’s parcel 
map; and 
 

5. The rates as listed in Exhibit ‘A’ attached hereto are hereby adopted and take effect July 1, 2015. 
                                    

THE FOREGOING was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 3rd day of 
June 2015, and passed at said regular meeting by the following vote: 
  
 AYES:  
 NOES:  
 ABSENT:  
 ABSTAIN:  
 ______________________________ 
 Stephen B. Hill 
  Mayor 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk

46



City Council Staff Report    Page 8 of 8 
Proposed Utility Rates for FY 2015/16 
 
 

Exhibit ‘A’ 
 

       WATER RATES 
Current 

Rate
Proposed 
Increase

Residential (Non-metered)       29.03 0.50 + 29.53     
Multi-Family (Non-Metered) per unit       23.48 0.50 + 23.98     
Commercial (Non-Metered)       29.03 0.50 + 29.53     
Residential & Multi-Family (3/4" Meter)       13.92 0.50 +
Residential & Multi-Family (1" Meter)       21.54 0.50 +
Commercial (Metered-Rate Determined by Meter Size)

  3/4" Meter 13.92      0.50 +
   1" Meter 21.54      0.50 +

   1.5" Meter 40.55      0.50 +
   2" Meter 93.82      0.50 +
   3" Meter 173.74   0.50 +
   4" Meter 287.90   0.50 +
   6" Meter 573.29   0.50 +

Water Cost per 1,000 Gallons 0.7956$ 0.0144

     16,000 gallons of usage + = $27.38
     24,000 gallons of usage + = $33.86

                                                                                    
Proposed 
Increase

Residential (Metered/Non-metered) 30.11 0.75 + =       30.86 
Multi-Family Residential (Metered/Non-Metered) per unit 18.39 0.75 + =       19.14 
Commercial (Non-Metered) 30.11 0.75 + =       30.86 
Commercial (Metered) 7.70 0.75 +
   Low Strength
   Medium Strength
   High Strength 

                                                                                    
     SOLID WASTE

Residential Customers
Commercial Customers

     STREET SWEEPING

Residential         0.95 
Multi-Family Residential per unit         0.52 

     STORM DRAIN

Residential (Metered/Non-metered)          1.50 
Commercial (Non-Metered)          1.50 

     RECAP
Current 

Rate
Non-Metered Customers          77.40          1.52 1.96%

         75.02          1.75 2.33%

                 1.55 

Effective July 1, 2015

       WATER USE EXAMPLES

1.05% increase

SEWER RATES                                                              Current Rate (Base + Flow)

16.03              0.17           

See 
Ex amples 

Below

See 
Ex amples 

Below

29.53                   $0.00
23.98                   $0.00
29.53                   $0.00
14.42                   

UTILITY RATE CHANGES - FISCAL YEAR 2015-16

Proposed Total 
Base Cost

Flow Cost Total Cost

Usage
22.04                   Usage

14.42                   Usage
22.04                   Usage
41.05                   Usage

Total Cost

94.32                   Usage
174.24                 Usage
288.40                 Usage
573.79                 Usage

$0.81

Base Cost Flow Cost
14.42                   $12.96
14.42                   $19.44

Base Cost Flow Cost Total Cost

                      8.45           22.41 

$1.10*
$1.43*
$2.74*

*Cost per 1,000 Gallons of Water Usage

                      1.94           17.20 
                      8.45           22.41 
                      8.45 Usage

            0.05 

Current Rate
Proposed 
Increase

Total Cost

15.86                   

Current Rate Proposed 
Increase

Total Cost

                      0.90 
                      0.47 

Current Rate Proposed 
Increase

Total Cost

            0.05 
            0.05 

            0.05                  1.55 

Proposed 
Increase

Total Cost

Commercial (Metered) - Based on Flow @ .0736 per 1,000 Gallons of Water Usage

Metered Customers Estimated @ 16,000 gallons of usage with 3/4" meter

% Increase

          78.92 
          76.77 

 

47



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER      
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox                     Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: CITY MANAGER 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: JUNE 3, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Luis Patlan, City Manager/Director of Planning 
Subject: Public Hearing Amending Title 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code Related to Emergency Shelters, 

Transitional and Supportive Housing for the Homeless 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council waive further reading, conduct the public hearing and adopt Ordinance No. 15-01 amending Chapter 
17.90.020 and adding Section 17.92 to Chapter 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code relating to emergency shelters, 
transitional and supportive housing for the homeless. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
On January 26, 2015, the Director of Planning and Development Services introduced a proposed zoning ordinance 
amendment related to emergency shelters, transitional and supportive housing for the homeless. The proposed 
zoning ordinance amendment is based on the provisions of Senate Bill 2 (SB2), which requires local agencies to 
identify one or more zones where emergency shelters are allowed as a permitted use without a conditional use 
permit, provided that the zone(s) include sufficient number of sites to accommodate the number of homeless 
individuals in the community. Compliance with SB2 is required as part of the upcoming 5th Cycle Housing Element 
update. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 
 
On March 23, 2015, the Kerman Planning Commission conducted a public hearing and adopted Resolution No. 15-
01 recommending that the City Council approve Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 15-01 relating to emergency 
shelters, transitional and supportive housing for the homeless consistent with the requirements of SB2. 

OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
The City of Kerman’s Zoning Ordinance must be in compliance with provisions of SB2 related to emergency, 
transitional and supportive housing in order for the Department of Housing and Community Development to certify 
the City’s 5th Cycle Housing Element update. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Kerman has joined the County of Fresno and ten other cities for the preparation of a Multi-Jurisdictional 
Housing Element Update (MJHE). Mintier-Harnish is the planning consultant selected to prepare the update. The 
fifth cycle Housing Element must be submitted to the State Department of Housing and Community Development 
(HCD) by December 31, 2015. 

48



City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 10 
First Reading and Introduction – Ordinance Amending Chapter 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code  
  
As part of the Housing Element update, Mintier-Harnish conducted a review of the City’s zoning ordinance and 
determined that Kerman’s ordinance does not include provisions for emergency shelters, transitional and supportive 
housing for the homeless as required by Senate Bill 2 (SB2). 

 
SB2 was adopted by the California State Legislature and became law in 2008. This Bill requires cities and counties 
to identify one or more zones in the City where emergency shelters would be allowed as a permitted use without a 
conditional use permit. The zoning that is identified by the City must be of a sufficient amount of acreage and sites to 
accommodate the unmet needs of local homeless persons. In establishing zones, the statute gave local jurisdictions 
the ability to establish certain operational and development standards for emergency shelters. In addition, SB2 
requires that transitional housing and supportive housing be considered a residential use in the City codes, and 
subject only to those restrictions that apply to other residential dwellings in the same zone. 

 
To comply with SB2 and address homeless needs in Kerman, this zoning ordinance amendment proposes to add 
definitions for emergency shelters, transitional and supportive housing to serve the homeless, and identifies 
emergency shelters as permitted uses in the Service Commercial (C-S) or Light Industrial Zone (M-1) Zone Districts, 
subject to specific standards. Factors such as estimated homeless, the availability of land and suitable facilities 
pointed to service commercial and light industrially-zoned properties as the most suitable areas to allow for siting of 
emergency shelters. 

 
Transitional housing assists persons or families with multiple barriers to housing, such as mental or physical health 
needs, chronic substance abuse, or difficulty budgeting housing/living costs. As defined by HUD, the primary 
purpose of ‘temporary housing’ is to facilitate the movement of individuals or families experiencing homelessness to 
permanent housing within 24 months. Persons residing in transitional housing programs receive specialized 
supportive services (i.e. child care, employment assistance, health services, case management etc.) that will help 
them resolve their housing issues and live more independently. 

 
Permanent supportive housing targets homeless persons with disabling conditions. Permanent supportive housing 
has no limit on the duration of stay and integrates wrap-around services. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The City of Kerman must demonstrate compliance with State housing law as outlined in SB2 before HCD can certify 
the fifth cycle Housing Element Update. The proposed amendment to the zoning code will bring the City into 
compliance with SB2 requirements by identifying one or more zones that allow emergency shelters as a permitted 
use by right. The zoning that is identified must include a sufficient amount of acreage and sites to accommodate the 
unmet need for the shelter of homeless people in the City of Kerman. 
 
One key source of information for Fresno County’s homeless population is the biennial Fresno-Madera Continuum 
of Care Point-in-Time Count. Every other January, communities across the United States conduct comprehensive 
counts of their homeless population. The Counties of Fresno and Madera conducted its most recent homeless 
census in January 2014. The 2014 Point-in-Time Count estimated that there were 2,597 homeless individuals in 
Fresno/Madera Counties, with 8 homeless persons estimated to be from the City of Kerman. (As of the writing of this 
report, the January 2015 Point-in-Time Count Survey was in progress and not yet completed). 
 
Due to the estimated low number of homeless individuals in Kerman, there are currently no emergency shelters, 
transitional or supportive housing facilities located in the City. Homeless individuals would find temporary refuge 
(usually overnight) in local churches or would be referred to such housing facilities in the City of Fresno. There are 
several emergency shelters in Fresno that serve surrounding cities. These include: Poverello House and Fresno 
Rescue Mission. 

49



City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 10 
First Reading and Introduction – Ordinance Amending Chapter 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code  
  
Given the low number of homeless individuals in Kerman, the area proposed to allow for emergency shelters is the 
Service Commercial (C-S) and Light Industrial (M-1) Zone District. With approximately 100 acres of land designated 
for C-S and M-1, there is more than sufficient land to meet the requirements of SB2 to accommodate the siting of an 
emergency shelter. Moreover, these sites are within close proximity to major services situated along Whitesbridge 
Road and Madera Avenue. The zoning map in Attachment ‘A’ identifies those areas zoned Service Commercial and 
Light Industrial. 
 
The proposed zoning ordinance amendment identifies emergency shelters as a permitted use by right in the Service 
Commercial (C-S) and Light Industrial Zone District (M-1), provided certain standards are met. These include: 
maximum occupancy, length of stay, hours of operation, and parking. One key requirement is a Management and 
Operation Plan. The plan must provide a detailed security plan, operating procedures, staff ratio to clients served, 
“good neighbor” communication plan, client transportation plan, and a program for ongoing outreach to the Kerman 
homeless population. The Management and Operation Plan is to be reviewed and approved by the Director of 
Planning & Development in conjunction with the Police Chief prior to issuance of permit to minimize any impacts on 
surrounding land uses. 
 
As defined in the ordinance, an Emergency Shelters for homeless in Kerman would allow up to 30 beds or persons 
per night and would be permitted by right. By definition, an emergency shelter is any facility with dedicated 
beds/units whose primary intent is to provide overnight sleeping accommodations to those confronted with an 
immediate loss of housing or those who are already homeless. These shelters serve as the point of entry into the 
homeless assistance program and provide temporary shelter with a general length of stay ranging from 8 hours 
(overnight sleeping only) to 180 days, depending on provider. 
 
In summary, the provisions of SB 2 do not mandate that the City provide emergency shelters, transitional or 
supportive housing for the homeless. However, the law requires the City to allow for such facilities to be located 
within designated zone districts as a permitted use by right. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
There is no fiscal impact associated with this action. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
A public hearing notice on the proposed ordinance amendment was published in the Kerman News for the June 3, 
2015 City Council meeting. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Emergency Shelter Zone Map 
B. Ordinance No. 15-01 Amending Chapter 17 of the KMO 
C. SB2 Fact Sheet 

  

50



City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 10 
First Reading and Introduction – Ordinance Amending Chapter 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code  
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

Emergency Shelter Zone Map 
 

 
  

51



City Council Staff Report   Page 5 of 10 
First Reading and Introduction – Ordinance Amending Chapter 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code  
  

Attachment ‘B’ 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 15-01 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN AMENDING TITLE 17 OF THE KERMAN 
MUNICIPAL CODE TO PROVIDE FOR EMERGENCY SHELTER, TRANSITIONAL AND SUPPORTIVE HOUSING 

FOR THE HOMELESS IN COMPLIANCE WITH STATE HOUSING LAW (SB2) 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The City Council of the City of Kerman hereby finds, determines and declares as follows: 
 
A. That the City of Kerman seeks to be in compliance with the State of California’s regulations for the 

allowance of emergency homeless shelters as required by State Senate Bill 2 (SB2). 

B. That the State of California Legislature passed SB2 (effective January 1, 2008) modifying State Housing 
Element law to require local planning and zoning regulations to facilitate homeless shelters. Specifically, 
SB2 requires all cities and counties to provide at least one zoning category in which emergency shelters 
can be located without discretionary approval from the local government. The zoning category must be 
identified in the locality’s housing element, and include sites with sufficient capacity to meet the local 
need for emergency shelter. 

C. That after a thorough review the following standards have been developed in order to allow emergency 
homeless shelters as required, while maintaining those regulations necessary to provide for public 
health, safety and welfare. 

D. The staff report recommending City Council adoption for this ordinance dated March 23, 2015 shall by 
this reference be incorporated herein, and together with this ordinance, any amendments or supplements 
and the oral testimony before the City Council at this meeting, shall additionally constitute the necessary 
findings for this ordinance. 

Section 2. Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) and the State CEQA Guidelines, 
the adoption of this ordinance is exempt from CEQA review pursuant to 14 California Code of Regulations section 15-
61(b)(3), and a Notice of Exemption will be filed with the County Recorder upon adoption of this ordinance. 

Section 3. Section 17.90.020 Chapter 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code is hereby amended to add or amend 
the following definitions: 

 "Emergency residential shelter" shall be amended to read as follows: 
 
“Emergency residential shelter” means housing with minimal supportive services for homeless persons that 
is limited to occupancy of six months or less by a homeless person, where no individual or household may be 
denied emergency shelter because of an inability to pay; as defined and used in Section 508019 of the 
California Health and Safety Code. 

“Transitional housing” shall be added to read as follows: 

52



City Council Staff Report   Page 6 of 10 
First Reading and Introduction – Ordinance Amending Chapter 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code  
  

“Transitional housing” Buildings configured as rental housing developments, but operated under program 
requirements that require the termination of assistance and recirculating of the assisted unit to another 
eligible program recipient at a predetermined future point in time that shall be no less than six months from 
the beginning of the assistance. Transitional housing units are residential uses allowed in all zones that allow 
residential uses, subject only to those requirements and restrictions that apply to other residential uses of the 
same type in the same zone.  

“Supportive housing” shall be added to read as follows: 

“Supportive housing” housing with no limit on length of stay, that is occupied by the target population and that 
is linked to onsite or offsite services that assist the supportive housing resident in retaining the housing, 
improving his or her health status, and maximizing his or her ability to live and, when possible, work in the 
community. Supportive housing units are residential uses allowed in all zones that allow residential uses, 
subject only to those requirements and restrictions that apply to other residential uses of the same type in the 
same zone.  

“Target populations” shall be added to read as follows: 

“Target populations” persons with low incomes who have one or more disabilities, including mental illness, 
HIV or AIDS, substance abuse, or other chronic health condition, or individuals eligible for services provided 
pursuant to the Lanterman Developmental Disabilities Services Act (Division 4.5 (commencing with Section 
4500) of the Welfare and Institutions Code) and may include, among other populations, adults, emancipated 
minors, families with children, elderly persons, young adults aging out of the foster care system, individuals 
exiting from institutional settings, veterans, and homeless people.  

Each of the foregoing definitions or amended definitions shall be inserted within the existing text of Section 
17.90.020 according to the alphabetical order currently observed therein. 

Section 4.  Chapter 17.92 of the Kerman Municipal Code is hereby added to read as follows: 

Chapter 17.92. Homeless Shelters 

Section 17.92.010. Homeless Shelter – Zones 

An emergency shelter for homeless or multiservice center for homeless shall be a permitted use on 
any parcel within the C-S (Service Commercial) or M-1 (Light Industrial) zones. Each facility shall comply 
with all of the required development and operational standards of the zone in which it is located. 

 Section 17.92.020. Standards 

In addition to the development standards in the underlying zoning district, the following standards 
apply to emergency shelters and each emergency shelter shall comply with the standards set forth in this 
Section. In the event of conflict between these standards and the underlying zoning district regulations, the 
provisions of this Section shall apply. Nothing in this Section modifies the requirements for approval of a 
religious facility as otherwise provided in this Code. 

(1) Facility Compliance. Federal, State and local licensing as required for any program 
incidental to the emergency shelter. 

(2) Physical Characteristics. 

53



City Council Staff Report   Page 7 of 10 
First Reading and Introduction – Ordinance Amending Chapter 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code  
  

a. Compliance with applicable state and local uniform housing and building code 
requirements. 

b. The facility shall have on-site security during all hours when the shelter is open. 

c. Facilities shall provide exterior lighting on pedestrian pathways and parking lot areas 
on the property. Lighting shall reflect away from residential areas and public streets. 

d. Facilities shall provide secure areas for personal property. 

(3) Occupancy. A maximum of 30 beds or persons may be served nightly, with associated 
support service not open to the public. 

(4) Length of stay. The length of stay of an individual client shall not exceed six (6) months 
within a twelve (12) month period; days of stay need not be consecutive. 

(5) Parking. On-site vehicle parking spaces shall be provided at a rate of 2 spaces per facility for 
staff plus 1 space per six (6) occupants or beds allowed at the maximum occupancy. A 
covered and secured area for bicycle parking shall be provided for use by staff and clients, 
commensurate with demonstrated need, but no less than a minimum of eight (8) bike 
parking spaces. 

(6) Waiting and Intake Area. A client waiting area shall be provided sufficient in size to 
accommodate all persons waiting to enter the facility, and shall contain a minimum of ten 
(10) square feet per bed provided at the facility. 

(7) Support Services. Emergency shelters that provide support services shall allocate sufficient 
areas on-site, and properly enclosed within the building. Support services include, but are 
limited to, the following: 

a. Food preparation and dining areas. 
b. Laundry facilities. 
c. Restrooms and showers. 
d. Areas to secure and store client belongings. 

(8) Management and Operating Plan. The applicant or operator shall submit a Management and 
Operation Plan for the Emergency Shelter for review and approval by the Planning Director 
in consultation with the Chief of Police in conjunction with the Site Plan Review application 
and/or prior to the issuance of permits. The plan shall include a floor plan that demonstrates 
compliance with the physical standards of this chapter. The plan shall remain active 
throughout the life of the facility, with any changes subject to review and approval by the 
Planning Director in consultation with the Chief of Police. The plan shall be based on “best 
practices” and include, but limited to, a security plan, procedures list, list of services, staff 
training, “good neighbor” communication plan, client transport and active transportation plan, 
ratio of staff to clients, eligibility and intake and check out process, detailed hours of 
operation, ongoing outreach plan to Kerman homeless population, and participation in data 
collection for the Fresno Madera Counties Continuum of Care Point-in-Time Report. The 
City may inspect the facility at any time for compliance with the facility’s Management and 
Operation Plan and other applicable laws and standards. 

54



City Council Staff Report   Page 8 of 10 
First Reading and Introduction – Ordinance Amending Chapter 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code  
  

(9) Permit Fee. The city council may establish a fee by resolution, to cover the administrative 
cost of review of the required Management and Operation Plan. 

Section 17.92.030 Transitional and Supportive Housing – Zones. 

Transitional housing and supportive housing shall be considered a residential use of property in the multi-
family zone district, and shall be subject only to those restrictions that apply to other residential dwellings of the same 
type in the same zone.  

Section 17.92.040  Constitutionality.  Should any section, subsection, paragraph, clause, or phrase of this 
Chapter for any reason be held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect 
the validity or constitutionality of the remaining portions of this Chapter. 

Section 5. Upon passage of this ordinance or a summary of the same shall be published within fifteen (15) 
days of passage pursuant to the laws of the State of California in the Kerman News, a newspaper of general 
circulation published and circulated in said City of Kerman. 

The foregoing ordinance was introduced and given its first reading at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City 
of Kerman held on the 15th day of April, 2015, and was passed after a second reading and noticed public hearing 
held pursuant to law at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman on the 3rd day of June, 2015 by 
the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN:           
      ______________________________ 

 Stephen Hill 
 Mayor 
  

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

 
 
  

55



City Council Staff Report   Page 9 of 10 
First Reading and Introduction – Ordinance Amending Chapter 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code  
  

Attachment ‘C’ 
 

Senate Bill 2 Fact Sheet 
 

Summary: SB 2 strengthens state law by ensuring that every jurisdiction identifies potential sites where new 
emergency shelters can be located without discretionary review by the local government. It also increases protections 
for providers seeking to open a new emergency shelter, transitional housing or supportive housing development, by 
limiting the instances in which local governments can deny such developments. Applicable to all cities and counties in 
California, SB 2 takes effect January 1, 2008, and will impact all housing element updates due after this date, as well 
as those that were due prior to 2008, but are being submitted for the first time after January 1, 2008. Subject to 
important limitations described below, SB 2: 
 

• Requires all cities and counties (“localities”) to provide at least one zoning category in which emergency 
shelters can be located without discretionary approval from the local government. The zoning category must 
be identified in the locality’s housing element, and include sites with sufficient capacity to meet the local need 
for emergency shelter. 

• Requires that all localities provide at least one such site. 
• Expands the Housing Accountability Act, to prohibit localities from denying a proposal to build an emergency 

shelter, transitional housing or supportive housing if it is needed and otherwise consistent with the locality’s 
zoning and development standards. 

 
Key Elements: The changes created by SB 2 should be thought of in two categories: (1) Planning for emergency 
shelters; and (2) siting of emergency shelters, transitional housing and supportive housing. 
 
Planning for Emergency Shelters 
Each locality must identify in its housing element at least one zoning category in which homeless shelters are 
allowed, without a conditional use permit or other discretionary review. More particularly, the locality must: 
 

• Identify Need: Under current law, the housing element must include an estimate of the number of persons in 
need of emergency shelter in the jurisdiction. SB 2 requires the analysis to consider both seasonal and 
annual need. 
 

• Provide sites for new emergency shelters: SB 2 requires the local government to show in its housing 
element that it has one or more zoning categories that allow emergency shelters without a conditional use 
permit or other discretionary review. The local government cannot use discretionary criteria to deny the 
project; if it meets certain objective criteria, the shelter must be approved. 

The identified zone or zones must have sufficient capacity to meet all of the locality’s identified need 
for emergency shelter. For example, if a locality determines that it has an unmet need of 100 persons who 
are homeless, the zone or zones identified must consist of sites that have sufficient capacity to 
accommodate a shelter or shelters for 100 people. Regardless of the identified need, each jurisdiction must 
identify at least one such site. 

 
• Rezone If Necessary: If the locality does not currently have such a zone or the zone is not sufficient, it must 

include a program to amend its zoning ordinance to provide a sufficient zone or zones within one year of the 
adoption of its housing element. 
 

56



City Council Staff Report   Page 10 of 10 
First Reading and Introduction – Ordinance Amending Chapter 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code  
  

• Eliminate Onerous Standards: The local government can establish objective development and 
management standards for the operation of emergency shelters, such as the size, parking standards, 
lighting, and others set forth in the law. However, the locality must demonstrate that any management or 
development standards as well as any permit processing standards that it applies are objective and actually 
encourage the creation of emergency shelters. 
 

• Exceptions for Compliant Cities: If the local government can demonstrate that it has an emergency shelter 
or shelters that meet all of its existing need, it must still designate a zone or zones where emergency shelters 
are permitted, but it may require a conditional or discretionary use permit. In addition, any city with an 
existing by-right process for emergency shelters that is in compliance with the standards set forth in SB 2 
need only describe its ordinance and how it meets the requirements of the law. 

Finally, the bill gives credit to jurisdictions that are successfully implementing a supportive housing 
program model under the jurisdiction’s 10-year plan to End Chronic Homelessness, by allowing a reduction 
in the need to account for supportive housing units available in the community. To take advantage of this 
credit, the jurisdiction must show that the units are (1) identified in the plan; and (2) either currently vacant or 
have all of the necessary funding to allow construction during the planning period. 

 
• Multi-Jurisdictional Agreements: Localities may meet some of their need by entering into an agreement 

with up to two other adjacent local governments to provide a joint facility provided the emergency shelter will 
be developed within two years of the beginning of the planning period. For example, two adjoining cities and 
a county may agree to jointly fund an emergency shelter, and count that shelter toward their identified need. 
The participating jurisdictions must adopt an agreement which, among other things, allocates a portion of the 
new shelter capacity to each jurisdiction. 
 

• Transitional and Supportive Housing: The bill clarifies that the local government must analyze any 
constraints to the development of supportive housing, transitional housing or emergency shelters. It also 
provides that transitional housing and supportive housing must be treated the same as any other residential 
use within the same zone. For example, when supportive housing is allowed in a multifamily residential zone, 
the local government cannot impose any additional restrictions on supportive housing than what are imposed 
on other multifamily units. 
 

Siting of Emergency Shelters, Transitional and Supportive Housing 
 

The bill also ensures that local governments do not unreasonably deny approval for needed emergency 
shelters, transitional housing or supportive housing. The California Housing Accountability Act (formerly referred to as 
the Anti-NIMBY statute) prohibits discrimination against certain types of permanent housing for lower-income 
households. SB 2 expands this law to cover emergency shelters, and clarifies that it protects transitional and 
supportive housing, as well. 

As a result, except under very limited exceptions, if a new emergency shelter is proposed on a site that is 
zoned to allow that use, and the local government has not met the need for emergency shelter identified in its 
housing element, the local government must approve the shelter. Similarly, transitional or supportive housing projects 
that are consistent with the zoning for the proposed site may not be denied if the city has not yet met its need for new 
housing units affordable to the income levels to be served by the proposed project, except under limited 
circumstances. 

57



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Stephen B. Hill Gary K. Yep 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER      
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox                     Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: CITY MANAGER 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: JUNE 3, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Luis Patlan, City Manager/Director of Planning 
Subject: Participation in the Sustainability Energy Roadmap (SER) Program 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion approve participation in the Sustainable Energy Roadmap program and authorizes the City 
Manager to execute the Jurisdiction Partner Agreement on behalf of the City of Kerman. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
The Sustainable Energy Roadmap (SER) is a state-funded program focused on helping local communities to set 
and pursue goals related to energy efficiency, renewable energy, and transportation and land use, all while 
enhancing the role of environmental justice communities in the public planning process. SER is currently seeking 
participation from 18 cities to be a part of the program. The first 18 cities that agree to participate will receive a 
$5,000 stipend. Cities interested in joining the 18-month program must sign a Sustainable Energy Roadmap 
Jurisdiction Partner Agreement. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The SER is sponsored by California’s Strategic Growth Council through Proposition 84 funding. By opting into the 
voluntary 18-month SER program, participating cities and counties are supported in benchmarking clean energy and 
sustainable development policies and programs, identifying relevant best practices, and adopting goals that support 
the environment, economy and disadvantaged communities. 
 
The tailored Roadmap process takes municipalities through the following four steps: 
 

1. Performance of a baseline benchmark survey of existing municipal sustainability infrastructure, processes 
and practices. 

2. Identification of local sustainability goal(s) for improvement in the areas of energy efficiency, renewable 
energy, transportation and land use, and social equity. 

3. Development of a “Roadmap” or action plan on how to achieve the goal(s), with special attention to 
addressing the needs of Disadvantaged Communities, tied to regional and national best practices through an 
online platform. 

58



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 5 
Sustainable Energy Roadmap (SER) Program 
  

4. Project implementation and monitoring to achieve and document success by utilizing program resources and 
adoption assistance. 

 
The program is led by a collective of partners that include the San Joaquin Valley Regional Policy Council, San 
Rafael-based non-profit Strategic Energy Innovations (SEI), Santa Clara-based Optony Inc., Colorado Energy 
Group, and the National Association of Regional Councils (NARC), along with 2 leading public agencies: the Madera 
County Transportation Commission and the City of Visalia. For more information about the SER, visit web site at 
http://my.cleanenergyroadmap.com/partner/sanjoaquinvalley. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
There is no direct cost associated with participation in the program. The City will receive a one-time stipend in the 
amount of $5,000 for participation in the program. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Sustainable Energy Roadmap (SER) Jurisdiction Partner Agreement 
 

 
  

59

http://my.cleanenergyroadmap.com/partner/sanjoaquinvalley


City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 5 
Sustainable Energy Roadmap (SER) Program 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

 

60



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 5 
Sustainable Energy Roadmap (SER) Program 
  

 

61



City Council Staff Report    Page 5 of 5 
Sustainable Energy Roadmap (SER) Program 
  

 

62



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: JUNE 3, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Jerry Jones, City Engineer 
Subject: Resolution Approving Agreement for Utility Service at 432 S. Goldenrod Avenue 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt resolution approving Agreement for Utility Service for Jesus and Lydia Magana at 432 S. 
Goldenrod Avenue. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
Jesus and Lydia Magana own the property located at 432 S. Goldenrod Avenue, at the northeast corner of Kearney 
Boulevard and Goldenrod Avenue. The property consists of a single family residence and is served by a well and 
septic system. The existing well has gone dry and the property owners are without a source of potable water. The 
property owners have requested to connect to City utilities and pay the required connection fees over a 10-year 
period.  
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
The property owner’s existing well has gone dry and they are in urgent need of water service. The owners are 
currently receiving water from an adjacent property owner. Connection to the City’s water system is desired 
immediately. However, connection to the City’s sewer system is not urgent and the property owners may be allowed 
2 years from the date of the Utility Service Agreement to connect to the sewer system. Impact fee payments for both 
water and sewer will begin with the first monthly billing for water service.   
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Due to the failure of their existing well, the owners of the subject property have requested to connect to City utilities. 
The subject property is located at the northeast corner of Kearney Boulevard and Goldenrod Avenue, just outside of 
the City Limits, see Attachment ‘B’. The existing improvements to the property consist of a single family residence 
that is served by a well and septic system. The property was provided with water and sewer services as part of the 
improvements completed along Goldenrod Avenue for the Goldenrod Elementary School. Water and sewer services 
were provided to all of the single family residences on the east side of Goldenrod Avenue adjacent to the elementary 
school in anticipation of future annexation of the properties into the City. 
 
The Kerman Municipal Code (KMC) Section 13.04.100 allows for properties located outside of City Limits to connect 
to City utilities provided the property owners enter into a written agreement with the City for all utility services. 
Furthermore, KMC Section 13.08 requires the payment of fees for connection, either in full or on an installment 
basis. The owners will be required to pay the applicable development impact fees for connection to City utilities. The 

63



City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 10 
Utility Service - Magana 
  
development impact fees were calculated using the length of developed frontage and one residential unit. The total 
fees are $9,518. The owners have requested that the fees be collected on a monthly basis over a 10-year period. 
This alleviates the up-front fiscal impact to the property owner. Any future development on the property will be 
subject to additional impact fees. In addition to the benefit provided to the property owner, the City benefits from the 
elimination of an unregulated groundwater supply source adjacent to the City’s boundaries. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The water service will be metered and the owners will be required to pay monthly water and sewer charges based 
on current rates. The applicable development impact fees will be collected over a 10-year period. The total impact 
fees to be collected are $9,518, or $79.32 per month for the 10-year term. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Not Required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution w/Exhibit 
B. Vicinity Map 

 
 
  

64



City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 10 
Utility Service - Magana 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN APPROVING AGREEMENT  
FOR UTILITY SERVICE FOR JESUS AND LYDIA MAGANA 

 
  WHEREAS, Jesus and Lydia Magana are the owners of real property located at 432 S. Goldenrod Avenue, in the County 
of Fresno; and 

  WHEREAS, the Magana property contains a residence, water well and septic system; and 

  WHEREAS, sewer and water mains currently exist across the frontage of the subject property in Goldenrod Avenue and 
water and sewer services have been previously installed for the Magana property; and  

  WHEREAS, the amount of the City of Kerman Development Impact Fees for the Magana property to connect to the 
sewer and water system are $9,518; and 

  WHEREAS, Jesus and Lydia Magana have made application to the City of Kerman for water and sewer service; and  

  WHEREAS, Section 13.08 of the Kerman Municipal Code requires payment of connection charges, and Section 
13.04.100 of the Kerman Municipal Code requires an Agreement for Utility Service between the property owner and the City 
before utility service can be provided.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

The Agreement for Utility Service for Jesus and Lydia Magana as substantially shown in Exhibit A is hereby approved and 
the City Manager is authorized to sign the Agreement on behalf of the City. 

The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 3rd day of 
June, 2015, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 

The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 

               
        Stephen B. Hill  
ATTEST:       Mayor 
 
                                                                  
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

Exhibit ‘A’ 

65



City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 10 
Utility Service - Magana 
  

 

66



City Council Staff Report   Page 5 of 10 
Utility Service - Magana 
  

67



City Council Staff Report   Page 6 of 10 
Utility Service - Magana 
  

68



City Council Staff Report   Page 7 of 10 
Utility Service - Magana 
  

69



City Council Staff Report   Page 8 of 10 
Utility Service - Magana 
  

 

70



City Council Staff Report   Page 9 of 10 
Utility Service - Magana 
  

 
  

71



City Council Staff Report   Page 10 of 10 
Utility Service - Magana 
  

Attachment ‘B’

 

72



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

  MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
  Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
  COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
  Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: FINANCE 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: JUNE 3, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Toni Jones, Finance Director 
Subject: Preliminary Budget Presentations of Landscape & Lighting District and Internal Service Funds Budget 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Council to review the preliminary Landscape & Lighting and Internal Service Funds Budgets for Fiscal Year 2015/16 
and make any recommendations for changes. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
The Landscape and Lighting Maintenance Distirct (L&LMD) annually levies and collects special assessments in 
order to maintain certain improvements such as street lighting, irrigation systems, mowing/weeding and plant 
materials within the L&LMD. The L&LMD provides and ensures the continued maintenance, servicing, administration 
and operation of various landscaped and lighting improvements in various tracts in the L&LMD throughout the City. 
Each tract is identified within a distinct zone with differing costs and benefits to the parcels within each zone.  
The City has two Internal Service Funds (ISF); Vehicle/Equipment Fund and Technology Fund. Internal Service 
Funds finance the goods and/or services provided by one department. Departments utilizing services provided are 
charged a fee by the ISF department providing the service. The ISF departments depend upon revenue generated 
from those fees to support all departmental functions. The Vehicle/Equipment fund enables the fleet management to 
procure and manage fuel, acquire, maintain, repair and dispose of vehicles and equipment in the City fleet. The 
Technology fund manages all City information services, including technical support and electronic systems. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES 
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION 
The Landscape & Lighting Maintenance District was originally formed on September 7, 1993 by resolution #93-47 
and is currently comprised of twelve (12) areas thoughout the City (Attachment ‘A’). The L&LMD receives it 
revenues from property tax assessments and not from user fees. The L&LMD assessment calculations are 
presented annually by the City Engineer and approved by the Council. Approximately $212,777 will be collected in 
fiscal year 2015/16. Anticipated expenses for the year are estimated at $211,827 and is $950 less than the 
estimated revenue. To help alleviate the work load on the public works department, the budget this year includes 
four part time employees to assist with the maintenance through the summer months (2,560 hours). This budget 
ensures the continued maintenance and service of the areas within the Landscape and Lighting Districts. 
 

73



City Council Staff Report                             Page 2 of 7 
Preliminary Landscape & Lighting Funds and Internal Service Funds Budgets for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  
The Vehicle/Equipment Internal Service Fund (ISF) provides for the operation, maintenance and replacement of 
vehicles and equipment for all City funds. The operation budget provides for the operation and maintenance (O & M) 
costs, personnel, fuel and insurance costs. Departments with vehicles and/or equipment are charged a fee for O & 
M and a portion of the replacement cost. When purchased the life on the vehicle or equipment is determined by 
number of years and the annual amount for replacement is charged to the department and set aside in a fund for 
future replacement. The fees collected for O & M provide for the ongoing costs to maintain the City’s fleet. 
 
The Technology Internal Service Fund provides for the replacement of existing desktop computers and annual 
maintenance for IT services for the upkeep of our equipment and computer network. In the same fashion that we 
fund the Vehicle/Equipment fund, the Technology ISF charges the various City departments based on the 
equipment provided.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
None. 
 
Attachments: 
 
 A. Map of Current Landscape & Lighting Maintenance Districts 
 B. Landscape & Lighting Revenue and Expenses 
 C. Vehicle/Equipment Internal Service Fund Budget Revenue and Expenses 
 D. Technology Internal Service Fund Budget Revenue and Expenses 
 

  

74



City Council Staff Report                             Page 3 of 7 
Preliminary Landscape & Lighting Funds and Internal Service Funds Budgets for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
Current Landscape & Lighting Maintenance District Map 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

75



City Council Staff Report                             Page 4 of 7 
Preliminary Landscape & Lighting Funds and Internal Service Funds Budgets for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

Attachment ‘B’ 
 

 
 

 

Description Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

LANDSCAPING & LIGHTING DISTRICT FUND (750)
350 00 00 Assessments 193,448 206,982 209,670 209,000 212,777

193,448 206,982 209,670 209,000 212,777

Special Revenue - Landscape & Lighting District
750

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL
410 10 00 Salaries 63,002 64,135 74,324 74,324 62,623
410 20 00 Part Time Salaries 4,760 10,710 20,000 20,000 33,500
410 30 00 Overtime 2,731 3,384 3,860 3,860 2,500
410 35 00 Stand By 1,803 1,890 1,950 1,950 1,805
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 1,344
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 34,096 31,925 37,910 37,910 33,063

TOTAL PERSONNEL 106,391 112,044 138,043 138,044 134,835

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services 0 25 500 0 0
510 10 00 Professional Services-Assessments 4,018 3,654 3,500 3,500 3,500
510 11 00 Professional Services-GIS Mapping 0 0 3,500 3,500 0
515 01 00 Utilities 30,016 30,534 30,000 30,000 30,000
521 02 00 General Supplies 7,524 5,145 5,000 5,000 5,000
521 06 00 Uniforms 343 514 375 480 500
540 00 00 Lease Payment (PFA Bond) 2,580 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,572
550 00 00 Insurance 2,824 2,894 3,436 3,274 2,357
551 02 00 Communications - Cellular Phone 0 406 500 500 500
555 04 00 Taxes & Assessments (F.I.D.) 63 63 63 63 63
557 41 00 Transfer to Other Funds 0 895 0 0 0
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 17,684 14,795 23,697 23,697 24,545
560 00 00 Administration & Overhead 7,956 7,956 7,956 7,956 7,956

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 73,006 69,482 81,127 80,569 76,992

CAPITAL
600 03 00 Capital Outlay-Machinery & Equipment 0 0 0 0 0
600 03 36 Capital Outlay-Bucket Truck 0 0 10,000 10,812 0
600 03 99 Capital Outlay-New Accounting Software System 0 0 2,685 2,685 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 12,685 13,497 0

TOTAL DEPARTMENT EXPENDITURES 179,397 181,526 231,855 232,110 211,827

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) (20,028)
Percentage of Change -8.6%

Budget Highlights:
Revenue:  L & L assessments will generate approximately $213,000 in FY 2015/16

LANDSCAPE & LIGHTING DISTRICT
750 4075 

76



City Council Staff Report                             Page 5 of 7 
Preliminary Landscape & Lighting Funds and Internal Service Funds Budgets for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
Attachment ‘C’ 

 

 
  

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE AND REPLACEMENT FUND (500)
361 01 00 Interest Earnings 1,944 636 500 100 200
250 01 00 Charges to Departments - Replacement Costs 0 0 125,289 125,289 137,773
334 09 00 Grant-Compressed Natural Gas Vehicles 0 80,000 0 0 0
364 00 00 Charges to Departments - Operations & Maint. 381,846 365,571 391,219 391,219 436,378
369 01 00 Miscellaneous 0 1,852 0 5,456 0

383,790 448,059 517,008 522,064 574,351

Description

Internal Service Fund Revenue Summary

77



City Council Staff Report                             Page 6 of 7 
Preliminary Landscape & Lighting Funds and Internal Service Funds Budgets for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

Attachment ‘C’ (cont’d) 
 

 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL
410 10 00 Salaries 46,730 47,317 52,021 53,000 55,213
410 30 00 Overtime 1,631 2,343 2,500 2,500 3,000
410 35 00 Stand By 1,193 1,641 1,770 1,770 1,824
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 1,185
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 22,225 21,316 25,701 25,701 26,418

TOTAL PERSONNEL 71,779 72,618 81,992 82,971 87,639

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services 6,539 12,065 10,000 22,000 10,000
515 01 00 Utilities 8,313 8,762 10,000 9,500 10,000
515 02 00 Fuel 123,084 127,657 140,000 100,000 130,000
521 01 00 Office Supplies & Postage 323 455 500 500 500
521 03 00 Vehicle Supplies - Parts 74,227 91,107 60,000 80,000 0
521 03 01 PD Fleet Preventative Maintenance 0 0 0 0 16,000
521 03 02 PD Fleet Repairs 0 0 0 0 16,000
521 03 03 Vehicle Preventative Maintenance 0 0 0 0 16,000
521 03 04 Vehicle Repairs 0 0 0 0 16,000
521 03 05 Equipment Repairs and Maintenance 0 0 0 0 16,000
521 06 00 Uniforms 152 168 175 310 350
550 00 00 Insurance 19,059 20,643 23,191 24,068 21,995
550 00 00 Insurance-Vehicles 0 0 0 0 4,500
551 01 00 Communications - Telephone 2,599 2,984 2,500 2,800 2,800
551 02 00 Communications - Cellular Phone 295 284 350 350 350
554 01 00 Travel - Conferences - Meetings 0 0 250 0 250
565 00 00 Internal Service Funds 5,504 4,454 5,926 5,926 5,846
560 00 00 Administration & Overhead 56,964 56,964 56,964 56,964 56,964

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 297,059 325,544 309,855 302,418 323,554

CAPITAL - 4050
600 04 03 Alarm System (Monitored) 0 3,200 0 0 0
600 04 05 Vehicle Tow Dolly 0 1,283 0 0 0
600 04 13 Small Equipment Replacement 2,064 2,217 0 0 0
600 04 15 A/C Freon Recovery/Recharge System 3,725 0 0 0 0

Vehicle Diagnostic Scanner 0 0 0 0 2,000
600 04 16 Tire Balancer 0 0 0 0 7,000
600 04 17 Shop Cooler 0 0 0 0 3,000

CAPITAL - 8000
600 04 33 Patrol Vehicles (3 in 2014/15) 85,582 65,394 75,000 62,381               104,000
600 04 34 PW Pickup & Three (3) CNG Vehicles 0 39,882 0 0 0
600 04 35 Tractor for Spraying and Disking (Used) 0 0 17,000 0 0
600 04 36 Bucket Truck (Used) 0 0 17,000 18,409 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 91,371 111,977 109,000 80,790 116,000

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 460,208 510,139 500,848 466,179 527,193

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 26,346
Percentage of Change 5.3%

  Budget Highlights:

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE & REPLACEMENT FUND
500 4050 & 500 8000

Capital: Four (4) Patrol Vehicles scheduled to be replaced in 15/16 - Transitioning to Dodge Charges from Missouri Highway Patrol and will 
be assigned to front line officers.

78



City Council Staff Report                             Page 7 of 7 
Preliminary Landscape & Lighting Funds and Internal Service Funds Budgets for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
  

 
Attachment ‘D’ 

 

 
 

 

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

TECHNOLOGY MAINTENANCE AND REPLACEMENT FUND (510)
361 01 00 Interest Earnings 853 886 600 750 750
250 01 00 Charges to Departments - Replacement Costs 0 0 13,741 13,741 13,313
364 00 00 Charges to Departments - Operations & Maint. 71,387 80,577 45,579 45,579 40,106

72,240 81,463 59,920 60,070 54,169

Description

Internal Service Fund Revenue Summary

Audited Audited Adopted Estimated Budget
Description 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 Year- End 2015-2016

PERSONNEL

410 10 00 Salaries 13,638            11,273            7,683             10,000               14,213               
410 30 00 Overtime 0 11                  0 100                    0
420 51 00 CalPERS Unfunded Liability 0 0 0 0 305                    
420 00 00 Fringe Benefits 4,875             3,803             2,750             2,750                 4,284                 

TOTAL PERSONNEL 18,513 15,087 10,433 12,850 18,802

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
510 01 00 Contract Services 18,527 24,253 25,669 25,669 25,768

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 18,527 24,253 25,669 25,669 25,768

CAPITAL
600 04 00 Capital Outlay - Computers 34,223 21,632 25,000 22,000 25,000

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 34,223 21,632 25,000 22,000 25,000

TOTAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 71,262 60,972 61,103 60,519 69,570

Budget to Budget Increase/(Decrease) 8,468
Percentage of Change 13.9%

  Budget Highlights:

TECHNOLOGY MAINTENANCE
510 5051

As has been the practice, if existing equipment is scheduled for replacement but found to be in good working order, the replacement of such 
equipment may be carried forward to another year.
Increase in personnel due to filling Senior Accountant position

79



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
 Stephen B. Hill Gary K. Yep  
 COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
 Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 

 DEPARTMENT: PUBLIC WORKS 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: JUNE 3, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Ken Moore, Public Works Director 
Subject: Kerman 36% Water Savings Campaign 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council review Kerman 36% Water Savings Campaign and make any recommendations or changes as needed. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
At the May 20, 2015 City Council meeting the Public Works Director provided a water conservation program report 
detailing the Governor’s 2015 State Emergency Drought order, implications of the order and some ideas of reaching 
the goals set forth by the Department of Water Resources. Council asked staff to prepare a more detailed and 
precise public education and out-reach water conservation program. Staff created an internal Water Conservation 
Task Force comprised of representatives of each department. The task force has prepared a Kerman 36% Water 
Saving Campaign as outlined in Attachment ‘A’. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
The State-imposed mandatory water savings target did not provide ample time needed to prepare, fund, and 
implement a comprehensive water savings campaign. However, the City will do its best to encourage water 
conservation over the next nine months in compliance with State law. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The Kerman 36% Water Savings Campaign reflects an integrated effort to provide a strategic marketing, 
educational, community advocacy, and enforcement program aimed at encouraging the community work together to 
save water to meet the State mandated 36% water reduction target. 
 
City staff began the effort by establishing internal ad-hoc Water Conservation Task Force. The task force met on 
May 26th to put together a campaign per the Council’s direction. The task force will meet weekly in the first three 
months in order to ensure that the campaign is implemented as proposed. The task force will update the Council on 
the progress of the campaign at every meeting. 
 
Implementation of the campaign will require a coordinated effort by all City departments. The goal of the plan is to 
de-emphasize fines and penalties and encourage the community to work together to achieve the water reduction 
target. Through a “Reduce Our Use: Working Together to Save Water” campaign, staff hopes to positively reinforce 
water conservation. Fines and penalties will be considered as a last resort where repeat water wasting or off-
schedule watering continues to occur.  

80



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 5 
Kerman 36% Water Savings Campaign 
  
A major component of the Kerman 36% Water Savings campaign is the recommendation to hire a full-time, 
temporary Water Tech position as a sole point-person on water conservation monitoring efforts. The person will 
work from July 1 through December 31. The goal is to have the individual work on a flexible schedule to patrol after 
hours and on weekends. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
Additional costs to the City include the hiring of a part-time water conservationist; publication expenses, various 
media messages and water savings programs including water saving devices the city intends to hand out. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Kerman 36% Water Savings Campaign 
  

81



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 5 
Kerman 36% Water Savings Campaign 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 

 
  

82



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 5 
Kerman 36% Water Savings Campaign 
  

 
  

83



City Council Staff Report    Page 5 of 5 
Kerman 36% Water Savings Campaign 
  

 

84


	Agenda
	Minutes
	May 20, 2015

	Payroll
	Payroll/Overtime Report

	Warrants
	Accounts Payable

	Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Sign Program Supplement No. N019 for the California Avenue Sidewalk Project
	Staff Report - California Sidewalk PS

	Healthy Workplace/Healthy Family Act of 2014 Part-Time Sick Leave Provisions Effective July 1, 2015
	Staff Report - Healthy Families Act of 2014

	Resolution Designating City Manager as Authorized Representative for the Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Grant for Well No. 18 and Consolidation of Double L Mobile Ranch Park
	Staff Report - SDWSRF Authorized Rep

	Public Hearing on Proposed Utility Rates for Fiscal Year 2015/16
	Staff Report - Utility Rates

	Public Hearing Amending Title 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code Related to Emergency Shelters, Transitional and Supportive Housing for the Homeless
	Staff Report - Emergency Shelters

	Participation in the Sustainable Energy Roadmap (SER) Program
	Staff Report - SER Program

	Resolution Approving Agreement for Utility Service at 432 S. Goldenrod Avenue
	Staff Report - Magana

	Preliminary Budget Presentations of Landscape & Lighting District and Internal Service Funds Budget
	Staff Report -  LLMD/ISF Budgets

	Kerman 36% Water Savings Campaign
	Staff Report - Water Conservation


